
 

  www.wincoil.us | Page 1  

 

AGENDA 
 

Virtual Meeting – Zoom 
(Winnebago County YouTube Live) 

 
Thursday, February 25, 2021 

6:00 p.m.  
 

The Winnebago County Board Chairman has determined that an in-person meeting is not 
practicable or prudent because of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 
1. Call to Order  .............................................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance ........................................ Board Member Jim Webster 
 
3. Agenda Announcements ............................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
4. Roll Call ............................................................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 
 
5. Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings, and Public Participation  

A. Awards – None  
B. Presentation – WCCMHB Program Year 2021 – 2022 Grant Update with Region 1 Planning 

Council Community Health Coordinator, Jason Holcomb, Board President Mary Ann Abate 
and Vice President Dick Kunnert   

C. Public Hearings – None 
D. Public Participation – None  

 
6. Approval of Minutes ................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Approval of January 28, 2021 minutes 
B. Layover of February 11, 2021 minutes  

 
7. Consent Agenda .......................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Raffle Report 
B. Auditor’s Report – Approval of bills 

 
8. Appointments (Per County Board rules, Board Chairman appointments require a 30 day 

layover unless there is a suspension of the rule). 
A. Winnebago County Zoning Board of Appeals 

1. Tom Walsh (Reappointment), Durand, Illinois, June 2020 – May 2025 
2. Tamara Verstraete (Reappointment), Machesney Park, Illinois, June 2020 – May 2025 
3. Edward Conklin (Reappointment), Rockford, Illinois, June 2019 – May 2024 

B. Otter Creek Lake Utility District Board 



www.wincoil.us | Page 2  

1. Roger Allen (New Appointment – Replacing Edwin Herrman), Davis, Illinois, February 
2021 – February 2026 

C. University of Illinois Extension Board 
1. Angie Goral (Reappointment), Rockford, Illinois, February 2021 – February 2023 
2. Aaron Booker (Reappointment), Winnebago, Illinois, February 2021 – February 2023  
3. Jim Webster (Reappointment), Rockton, Illinois, February 2021 – February 2023 
 

9. Reports of Standing Committees .................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

A. Finance Committee .................................................... Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Reimbursable Technology 

Expenditures to be Laid Over (unless rule suspension) 
3. Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Reimbursable Technology 

Expenditures to be Laid Over (unless rule suspension) 
4. Resolution Authorizing Settlement of a Claim Against the County of Winnebago 

Entitled Ryan Beckon Versus Winnebago County 
5. Resolution Authorizing Settlement of a Claim Against the County of Winnebago 

Entitled Glenn Heidenreich Versus Winnebago County 
6. Resolution Authorizing Settlement of a Claim Against the County of Winnebago 

Entitled David Kniffen Versus Winnebago County 
7. Resolution Authorizing Settlement of a Claim Against the County of Winnebago 

Entitled Jody Miller Versus Winnebago County 
 

B. Zoning Committee ........................................................ Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 

1. SU-04-20  A Special Use Permit (for the Purpose of Amending a Prior Approved SUP) 
for a Winery Accessory to a Vineyard in the AG, Agricultural Priority District for 
property that is commonly known as 8877 State Line Road, South Beloit, IL 61080 in 
Roscoe Township, District 4 to be laid over. 

2. SU-05-20  A Special Use Permit (for the Purpose of Amending a Prior Approved SUP) 
for Outdoor Entertainment to allow Outdoor Musical and Non-Musical Events in the 
AG, Agricultural Priority District for property that is commonly known as 8877 State 
Line Road, South Beloit, IL 61080 in Roscoe Township, District 4 to be laid over. 

3. Committee Report  
 

C. Economic Development Committee ................................... Jas Bilich, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 
D. Operations & Administrative Committee ............... Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
 

E. Public Works Committee ............................................. Dave Tassoni, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. (21-002) Resolution Authorizing the Obligation Retirement of Bond Payments from 

MFT Funds. (Sections:  05-00000-03-GB, 06-00000-04-GB and 07-00000-05-GB)  
Cost:  $1,450,000      C.B. District:  County Wide 



www.wincoil.us | Page 3  

3. (21-003) Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Preliminary Engineering Services 
Agreement with  Chastain & Associates, LLC to Provide Engineering Services for an 
Intersection Design Study for the Improvement of Riverside Blvd. (CH55) Between 
Material Avenue and Sage Drive (Section 16-00624-01-ES) 
Cost:  $61,662      C.B. District:  17 & 20 
 

F. Public Safety and Judiciary Committee…………………………….Burt Gerl, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Animal Services Ordinance Amending Section 14-116 Fee Schedule to be Laid Over 

 
10. Unfinished Business…………………………….…………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
11. New Business…………………………………………………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
12. Announcements & Communications ................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 

A. Correspondence (see packet)  
 
13.  Adjournment – Next Meeting…………………………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
Next Meeting:  Thursday, March 11, 2021 



 

  
Awards,  

Presentations,  
Public Hearings  

and Public Participation 

 
 



 

 Approval of 
Minutes 

 























 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 









 

  
Appointments 

 
 



 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 

It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: February 25, 2021 
From: County Board Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
Topic: Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Joseph Chiarelli recommends the following person(s) to 
serve as County appointees. 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
Tom Walsh of Durand to fulfill a 5-year term vacancy from June 2020–May 2025 on the Zoning 
Board of Appeals 
 

About the Winnebago County Zoning Board of Appeals 
Location:  404 Elm Street 

 
Service Description:  Hears public testimony on zoning petitions filed by petitioners and makes 

recommendations to the County Board on the petitions 
 

Board Composition:  Seven members from different townships appointed by the Winnebago County Board 
Chairman with the advice and consent of the County Board 
 

Compensation $100 per meeting  Meets 2nd Wednesday of each month 
 

Origin of Entity:  Article 2, Section 2.3 of the Winnebago County Codes 
Property 
Tax/Funding:  
 

Funded from County’s General Fund 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plans:  

If applicable 

 



January 26, 2021 
  
Honorable Joseph Chiarelli 
Winnebago County Board Chairman 
404 Elm Street, Room 533 
Rockford, IL  61011 
  
Dear Mr. Chairman: 
  
Please accept this letter as my formal statement of interest in continuing to serve on the 
Winnebago County Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA). I am currently serving on the ZBA, having 
been appointed to fill an unexpired term.  I previously served as a member of the ZBA for seven 
years and served as Chairman of that Board during 2010 and 2011.  I'm proud of that 
experience.  My resume (attached) shows over forty years of experience in the Real Estate and 
Assessment fields.  I needed to resign from the Board upon being appointed Supervisor of 
Assessments for Winnebago County because Supervisors of Assessments are not allowed to take 
part in any other lucrative public employment while serving as S of A. 
  
I look forward to continuing to serve the public by working to ensure fair, consistent zoning 
recommendations in accordance with the Zoning Code of Winnebago County. 
  
Thank you for your consideration. 
  
Sincerely, 
  
  
  
Thomas J. Walsh 
 



Thomas J. Walsh 
11922 Baker Road 
Durand, IL 61024 

(815) 248-2234 (h), (815) 721-6287 (c) 
walsh10@stateline-isp.com 

 
Real Estate and Property Tax Assessment Experience 

May 2011 - November 2018 Supervisor of Assessments, Winnebago County (125,000 parcels) 
        My office had a staff of thirteen, which included three mapping specialists.  I served as clerk 
        of the Board of Review, which processed over 7,500 assessment complaints in one year, 2011.   
        I worked with the Board of Review to improve their Rules and Procedures manual from a one   
    page outline to a 27 page guide the Board and taxpayers can refer to for consistent reference and 
    better understanding of the appeal process.  There were no written instructions for the Township 
    Assessors when I took office.  I developed a 56 page set of instructions for the Township     
    Assessors which we worked to improve every year.  When I started my term nothing was being 
    scanned into our Devnet Property Tax System.  Today there are scanners on every desk and   
    documents are managed more efficiently.  I oversaw the return of mapping responsibilities from 
    an outside vendor back to in-house.  This has saved money and improved accuracy and customer 
    service.  I was awarded the "Chairman's Service Excellence" award upon retirement in Nov. 2018. 

 February 1985 - May 2011 Chief Deputy Assessor, Rockford Township Assessor's Office   
         I was the leader of the total relisting and revaluation of Rockford Township (73,000 parcels) for the 
         1987 Quadrennial reassessment.  During the relisting phase, up to 100 people were employed in the 
         re-measuring, relisting, and reviewing of all property.  The revaluation involved complete data entry, 
         valuation model building (land and building), and neighborhood analysis and equalization.  I 
         supervised the appraisal staff (eight residential and two commercial) and the IT clerical staff (three 
         clerks).  I provided continuous neighborhood analysis and factor analysis for all classes of property. 
         My other duties included serving as the Database Administrator for the SQL Server based CAMA 
         system I developed with an in-house programmer. 

April 1982 - February 1985  Chief Deputy Supervisor of Assessments, Winnebago County 
October 1979 - April 1982   Residential Appraiser, Rockford Township Assessor's Office                             
February 1979 - October 1979   Staff Appraiser, Winnebago County Supervisor of Assessments            
January 1978 - February 1979  Staff Appraiser, Fredrick P. Juffernbruck M.A.I. 
December 1976 - December 1981  Assessor,  Laona Township (1,200 parcels) 
 

Pertinent Skills, Training, Experience and Education 
CIAO-I advanced designation from the Illinois Property Assessment Institute 
Illinois State Property Tax Advisory Committee - Farmland Division and Sales Ratio Division 
I have had assessments appealed to and upheld by the Illinois Supreme Court 
Over 1300 hours of Continuing Education Credit in all phases of Real Estate Appraisal, Development,  
    and Land Use Planning from the International Association of Assessing Officers, Illinois Property  
    Assessment Institute, Society of Real Estate Appraisers and the Illinois Department of Revenue 
Completed 2.5 years in the Civil Engineering curriculum at the University of Illinois in Champaign- 
    Urbana before being drafted into the Army 
Distinguished Graduate (first in class of 216) of the U.S. Army Non-Commissioned Officer Leadership 
    School.  I also earned the Ranger designation and led security patrols in the Demilitarized Zone  
    between North Korea and South Korea 
Durand Community Unit #322 School Board Member from 1995 - 2003 
Winnebago County Conservation Farm Family of the Year, 2003 (Winnebago County SWCD award) 
Member of the Winnebago County Zoning Board of Appeals, 2004 - 2011 and 2019 to present 
EMT-B with the Durand Fire Department 2004 - 2011; President of Fireman's Association 2009 - 2011 
Board Member of the Illinois Forestry Association  2017 to Present 



 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 

It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: February 25, 2021 
From: County Board Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
Topic: Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Joseph Chiarelli recommends the following person(s) to 
serve as County appointees. 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
Tami Verstraete of Machesney Park to fulfill a 5-year term vacancy from June 2020–May 2025 
on the Zoning Board of Appeals 
 

About the Winnebago County Zoning Board of Appeals 
Location:  404 Elm Street 

 
Service Description:  Hears public testimony on zoning petitions filed by petitioners and makes 

recommendations to the County Board on the petitions 
 

Board Composition:  Seven members from different townships appointed by the Winnebago County Board 
Chairman with the advice and consent of the County Board 
 

Compensation $100 per meeting  Meets 2nd Wednesday of each month 
 

Origin of Entity:  Article 2, Section 2.3 of the Winnebago County Codes 
Property 
Tax/Funding:  
 

Funded from County’s General Fund 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plans:  

If applicable 

 



From: Tami Verstreate <tamiryannick@gmail.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, February 9, 2021 6:08 AM 
To: Karen Elyea <KElyea@WinCoIL.us> 
Subject: Re: FW: ZBA Appointment 
 
Hi Karen, my apologies on your first email. I am absolutely interested in staying on the ZBA. I can send a 
formal letter or would this suffice? I am pretty open if you would like to set up an appointment to chat 
with the Chairman. My work cell is 815-315-3999, thank you  
 
 

mailto:tamiryannick@gmail.com
mailto:KElyea@WinCoIL.us


TAMARA VERSTRAETE 
  
  

7786 Hawks View Dr, Machesney Park, IL 61115 • (815)315-3999 • verstrat@mscdirect.com  

Professional Summary 

I have 25 Years of Management Experience before going to work for my current Employer. Customer 
-focused Customer Sales Solutions Consultant/ Key Account Sales Consultant, and Vendor Managed 
Solutions Specialist with a combined 13 years of providing solutions, cost savings and excellent 
customer service. Solid understanding of MSC’s Solutions. Standing history of developing 
Partnerships with several National Accounts.  Respected Morgan Corp, as being one of these 
accounts, I have been integral with their operations and customer needs. I have identified major Cost 
Savings that were both beneficial to the customer and MSC. Ability to identify opportunities and who 
the Decision Maker are within these organizations.  MSC has realized positive returns on investment 
savings and cost savings that have been relayed to the customers due to effective communication 
skills in strategizing these processes with the leaders of those organizations. I am knowledgeable of 
how Profit and Loss Statements are projected, adhered to and analyzed and am a team leader in 
hiring and retention.  

Skills 

● Self-motivated 
● People-oriented 
● Motivated team player 
● Trusted key holder 
● Detail-oriented 
● Excellent work ethic 

● Strong customer partnerships 
● Multitasking ability 
● Enthusiastic and friendly 
● Customer partnership development 
● Reliable 
● Revenue and profit maximization 

Work History 

  

CSSC/KASC, Oct 2018 to Present 

MSC Industrial Supply Co Inc-Machesney Park, IL 

●  Ranked in the top 18% of salesforce after taking on role for less than a year 
● Continued to build great customer Partnerships with new customers while achieving sales 

goals. 
● Worked with Suppliers to build the Trusted Advisor with Customer. 
● Worked with Internal Customers such as BDE’s, Inside Sales Team, Metalworking Specialist 

and Safety Specialist. 
● Secured many $75K-$200K wins with new and Existing Customers. 
● Implements MSC Culture and Goals efficiently. 



 

VMIS, 02/2007 to Oct 2018 
MSC Industrial Supply Co Inc – Machesney Park, IL 

● Served as the main liaison between customers, management and sales team. 
● Provided an elevated customer experience to generate a Partnership. 
● Recipient of multiple positive reviews acknowledging dedication to excellent customer service. 
● Built long-term customer partnerships and advised customers on purchases and promotions. 
● Ensured superior customer experience by addressing customer concerns, demonstrating 

empathy and problem resolution. 

Instructor, 03/2004 to 05/2007  
Food Served Safely – Machesney Park, IL 

● Created guides and course materials that would reiterate lecture information and help students 
in their study. 

● Provided clear, informative lectures in Food Service Sanitation to classes of 20 students, for 
Certification by the State of Illinois. 

● Taught at Rock Valley College, Rockford, Illinois. 

Restaurant Manager, 11/1979 to 02/2007  
McDonald’s – Rockford, IL 

● Quickly identified problem situations and skillfully resolved incidents to the satisfaction of 
involved parties. 

● Promoted a positive atmosphere and went above and beyond to guarantee each customer 
received exceptional food and service. 

● Achieved and maintained the highest employee retention rate in the market. 
● Received Outstanding Store Manager Award 3 years in a row. 
● Presented a new Customer Service Process at the Convention to 10,000 participants. 
● Managed several different Restaurants with my last growing sales from $920K to $2.5 M in 4 

years. 
● Managed up to 80 Employees and 10 Managers at a time. 
● Very versed in PNL projections and accountability. 

Education 

Hamburger University Dean’s list Associates equivalent in Business Management 1985 
High School Diploma: 1980  
Hononegah High School - Rockton, IL 
 
Service and Leadership 
ZBA Winnebago County 2007-Present 
Rockton Lions Club 2012-Present, President 2016-2018, Zone Chair 2018-2020, 2nd Vice District 
Governor 2020, 1st Vice District Governor 2021 
Holy Family Church Catechist 2012-Present 



 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 

It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: February 25, 2021 
From: County Board Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
Topic: Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Joseph Chiarelli recommends the following person(s) to 
serve as County appointees. 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
Edward Conklin of Rockford to fulfill a 5-year term vacancy from June 2019–May 2024 on the 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
 

About the Winnebago County Zoning Board of Appeals 
Location:  404 Elm Street 

 
Service Description:  Hears public testimony on zoning petitions filed by petitioners and makes 

recommendations to the County Board on the petitions 
 

Board Composition:  Seven members from different townships appointed by the Winnebago County Board 
Chairman with the advice and consent of the County Board 
 

Compensation $100 per meeting  Meets 2nd Wednesday of each month 
 

Origin of Entity:  Article 2, Section 2.3 of the Winnebago County Codes 
Property 
Tax/Funding:  
 

Funded from County’s General Fund 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plans:  

If applicable 

 



Edward J Conklin  

4048 Will Ann Drive 

Rockford, IL 61101 

Joseph V. Chiarelli 

Winnebago County Board Chairman 

404 Elm St. 

Rockford, IL 61101 

February 1, 2021 

Dear Chairman Chiarelli: 

By this letter I am expressing my interest in being reappointed to a position on 
the Zoning Board of Appeals. I have enjoyed my tenure on the ZBA and trust 
that I have been a positive contributing member to the discussions, analysis, 
and recommendation of the Board. 

My participation in planning and zoning began in 1962 when I was appointed to 
the Forest Park, Ohio, Planning Commission. Over the next thirteen years we, 
with the help of a consultant, completed a Master Plan, a Zoning Ordinance and 
Subdivision Rules and Regulations. For this entire time I was a member of the 
planning commission and served as the Chairman of the Planning and Zoning 
Committee of the City Council. 

I have served on the Winnebago County Zoning Board of Appeals since my 
appointment by County Board Chairman, Kris Cohn. 

Sincerely, 

 

Edward J Conklin 

 



 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: February 18, 2021 
From: County Board Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
Topic: Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Joseph Chiarelli recommends the following person to serve 
as County appointee. 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
Roger Allen of Davis, Illinois, to finish out a 5-year term from Feb 2021-Feb 2026 on the Otter 
Creek Lake Utility District Board left by Edwin Herrman. 
 

About the Otter Creek Lake Utility District 
Location:  1284 Lake Summerset Road, Davis, IL 61019 
Service Description:  Multi County water and sewer utility that serves the Lake Summerset 

subdivision in Winnebago and Stephenson County 

Board Composition:  Three trustees from Winnebago County, appointed by the Winnebago 
County Board Chairman with advice and consent of the County Board 

Origin of Entity: Public corporation existing pursuant to the Illinois Public Water District Act 
70 ILCS 3705/0.01 

Property Tax/Funding: 
 

Charges for services for water and sewer 
 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plan: 

If applicable 

Compensation: None 

 







 

 
Reports of 
Standing 

Committees 
 
 
 



 

FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 























 

  Resolution Executive Summary 
 
 

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4285  |  Fax: (815) 319-4286   

 

 
Prepared By:  Tanya Harris 
Committee:    Finance Committee  
Committee Date:   February 18, 2021 
Resolution Title:  Resolution for Approval for Workman’s Compensation Settlements   
Board Meeting Date: February 25, 2021 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes                          Appropriation Amount:  
If not, explain funding source:    
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  48500-43171     Budget Impact:  

 
 
Background Information:  Four settlements listed below: 
Ryan Beckon $19,446.44 
Glenn Heidenreich $33,979,07 
David Kniffen $19,046.48 
Jody Miller $25,499.33 
 
Recommendation:   : The Finance Committee, chaired by Jaime Salgado, has reviewed the settlements 
presented to the Board.  The Board is asked to approve these settlements in favor of the Committee’s 
recommendations at its February 18, 2021 meeting. 
 
Contract/Agreement:    
 
Legal Review:  Carol Hartline with Williams McCarthy LLP negotiated these settlements on behalf 
of Winnebago County. 
 
Follow-Up:    
 
 

http://www.wincoil.us/


Sponsored by: Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
 

COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
FEBRUARY 25, 2021 

 
 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:  Jamie Salgado 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2021 CR 
 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF A CLAIM 
AGAINST THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO ENTITLED 

RYAN BECKON VERSUS WINNEBAGO COUNTY IN THE  
AMOUNT OF $19,446.44 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, is involved in having claims asserted 
against it by Ryan Beckon for injuries allegedly sustained while in the employment of the IT 
Department, and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Plaintiff has offered to settle the above claim against the County of 
Winnebago for consideration payable in the amount of $19,446.44 for the settlement  funding for 
a Workers Compensation case; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, counsel for the County of Winnebago recommends that it is in the best 
interest of the County of Winnebago to settle the above referenced claims upon the terms of the 
proposed settlement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that it does hereby authorize settlement of the claims entitled Ryan Beckon 
versus County of Winnebago for injuries allegedly sustained by Ryan Beckon while in the 
employment of IT Department by payment of the amount of $19,446.44 for the settlement for 
permanent disability for a Workers Compensation case. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon it adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized 
to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Auditor, Director of 
Purchasing, Human Resources Director, and Williams & McCarthy. 
 



2 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA  PAULA ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MC DONALD 
 

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Sponsored by: Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
 

COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
FEBRUARY 25, 2021 

 
 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:  Jamie Salgado 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2021 CR 
 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF A CLAIM 
AGAINST THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO ENTITLED 

GLENN HEIDENREICH VERSUS WINNEBAGO COUNTY IN THE  
AMOUNT OF $33,979.07 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, is involved in having claims asserted 
against it by Glenn Heidenreich for injuries allegedly sustained while in the employment of the 
Sheriff’s  Department, and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Plaintiff has offered to settle the above claim against the County of 
Winnebago for consideration payable in the amount of $33,979.07 for the settlement  funding for 
a Workers Compensation case; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, counsel for the County of Winnebago recommends that it is in the best 
interest of the County of Winnebago to settle the above referenced claims upon the terms of the 
proposed settlement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that it does hereby authorize settlement of the claims entitled Glenn 
Heidenreich versus County of Winnebago for injuries allegedly sustained by Glenn Heidenreich 
while in the employment of Sheriff’s Department by payment of the amount of $33,979.07 for the 
settlement for permanent disability for a Workers Compensation case. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon it adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized 
to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Auditor, Director of 
Purchasing, Human Resources Director, and Williams & McCarthy. 
 



2 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA  PAULA ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MC DONALD 
 

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Sponsored by: Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
 

COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
FEBRUARY 25, 2021 

 
 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:  Jamie Salgado 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2021 CR 
 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF A CLAIM 
AGAINST THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO ENTITLED 

DAVID KNIFFEN VERSUS WINNEBAGO COUNTY IN THE  
AMOUNT OF $19,046.48 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, is involved in having claims asserted 
against it by David Kniffen for injuries allegedly sustained while in the employment of the 
Sheriff’s  Department, and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Plaintiff has offered to settle the above claim against the County of 
Winnebago for consideration payable in the amount of $19,046.48 for the settlement  funding for 
a Workers Compensation case; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, counsel for the County of Winnebago recommends that it is in the best 
interest of the County of Winnebago to settle the above referenced claims upon the terms of the 
proposed settlement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that it does hereby authorize settlement of the claims entitled David Kniffen 
versus County of Winnebago for injuries allegedly sustained by David Kniffen while in the 
employment of Sheriff’s Department by payment of the amount of $19,046.48 for the settlement 
for permanent disability for a Workers Compensation case. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon it adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized 
to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Auditor, Director of 
Purchasing, Human Resources Director, and Williams & McCarthy. 
 



2 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA  PAULA ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MC DONALD 
 

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Sponsored by: Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
 

COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
FEBRUARY 25, 2021 

 
 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:  Jamie Salgado 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2021 CR 
 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF A CLAIM 
AGAINST THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO ENTITLED 

JODY MILLER VERSUS WINNEBAGO COUNTY IN THE  
AMOUNT OF $25,499.33 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, is involved in having claims asserted 
against it by Jody Miller for injuries allegedly sustained while in the employment of the State’s 
Attorney Department, and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Plaintiff has offered to settle the above claim against the County of 
Winnebago for consideration payable in the amount of $25,499.33 for the settlement  funding for 
a Workers Compensation case; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, counsel for the County of Winnebago recommends that it is in the best 
interest of the County of Winnebago to settle the above referenced claims upon the terms of the 
proposed settlement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that it does hereby authorize settlement of the claims entitled Jody Miller 
versus County of Winnebago for injuries allegedly sustained by Jody Miller while in the 
employment of State’s Attorney Department by payment of the amount of $25,499.33 for the 
settlement for permanent disability for a Workers Compensation case. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon it adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized 
to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Auditor, Director of 
Purchasing, Human Resources Director, and Williams & McCarthy. 
 



2 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA  PAULA ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MC DONALD 
 

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 

ZONING 
 COMMITTEE 



 
Attachment 

 ZONING COMMITTEE  
OF THE COUNTY BOARD AGENDA 

 February 25, 2021  
 
 

Zoning Committee……….………….......……………...…Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 

     PLANNING AND/OR ZONING REQUESTS: 

  TO BE LAID OVER:   

1. SU-04-20 A SPECIAL USE PERMIT (FOR THE PURPOSE OF AMENDING A 
PRIOR APPROVED SUP) FOR A WINERY ACCESSORY TO A VINEYARD IN THE 
AG, AGRICULTURAL PRIORITY DISTRICT, requested by Edison and Heidi Wirth, 
on behalf of Wirth Group, LLC, property owner, represented by Ian Linnabary, attorney, 
for property that is commonly known as 8877 State Line Road, South Beloit, IL 61080 
in Roscoe Township. 
PIN: 04-01-200-005 C.B. District: 4 
Lesa Rating: N/A Consistent W/2030 LRMP – Future Map: N/A 
ZBA Recommends:  APPROVAL w/CONDITIONS (6-0) 
ZC Recommends:    TBD  

   
2. SU-05-20 A SPECIAL USE PERMIT (FOR THE PURPOSE OF AMENDING A 

PRIOR APPROVED SUP) FOR OUTDOOR ENTERTAINMENT TO ALLOW 
OUTDOOR MUSICAL AND NON-MUSICAL EVENTS IN THE AG, 
AGRICULTURAL PRIORITY DISTRICT, requested by Edison and Heidi Wirth, on 
behalf of Wirth Group, LLC, property owner, represented by Ian Linnabary, attorney, for 
property that is commonly known as 8877 State Line Road, South Beloit, IL 61080 in 
Roscoe Township. 
PIN: 04-01-200-005 C.B. District: 4 
Lesa Rating: N/A Consistent W/2030 LRMP – Future Map: N/A 
ZBA Recommends:  APPROVAL w/CONDITIONS (6-0) 
ZC Recommends:    TBD 

 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

3.    COMMITTEE REPORT (ANNOUNCEMENTS) - for informational purposes only; 
not intended as a public notice):  

 
• Chairman, Brian Erickson, hereby announces that a Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) 
 meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, March 10, 2021, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 303 of     
     the County Administration Building.   
 
• Chairman, Jim Webster, hereby announces that the next Zoning Committee (ZC) meeting 

is tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, March 24, 2021, at 5:00 p.m. in a TBD location. 
  
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

   



 

PUBLIC WORKS 
 COMMITTEE 































































 

Public Safety & 
Judiciary 

Committee 



 
 

   
    Executive Summary 

 

 4517 North Main St  |  Rockford, IL 61103  |  www.wcasrock.org  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4100  |  Fax: (815) 319-4101  |  Email: bfrazier@wincoil.us 

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 

Prepared By: Animal Services Department, Department Administrator Brett Frazier 

Committee: Public Safety & Judiciary Committee 

Committee Date: February 17, 2021  

Ordinance Amendment Title:  Ordinance Amending Low Income Eligibility Verification Requirements and 
Adoption Fee Schedule at Animal Services     

County Code:   Winnebago County Code, Chapter 14 - Animals 

Board Meeting Date:   February 25, 2021 

 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    NA                           Appropriation Amount:   $ 0 

If not, explain funding source:    

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:                                Budget Impact:    

 
Background Information:  
Currently county code requires that the Animal Services Department utilize WIC eligibility standards, including 

income and household size, in order to verify low-income status for residents attempting to access department 

low-income services.  These services include the spay/neuter voucher program and owner requested euthanasia.  

In order to assess eligibility, currently code requires that a resident prove eligibility by assembling documents 

that demonstrate household income and number of persons in the household so that our clerks can then assess if 

documentation is sufficient and if the resident is eligible.  This change would simply adopt the language of state 

statute related to these same animal related services and allow county residents who can prove they are eligible 

for the assistance programs noted in statute to also be approved for low-income services provided by the 

Animal Services Department.   

 

The statute refers to “low income residents who are eligible for the Food Stamp Program or Social Security 

Disability Benefits Program” (Food Stamp Program is now called SNAP but is also still referred to often as 

Food Stamps).  The easiest way for those residents to prove eligibility for those programs would be to show that 

they are approved by those programs for those benefits with a card or approval/determination letter.  This 

allows our department to avoid redoing the work of eligibility verification already done by those programs.   

 

The dog adoption fee rate has not been adjusted in many years.  Even after this adjustment, the Animal Services 

Department’s dog adoption fee is low compared to other dog adoption facilities in the region.  A modest 

adjustment in dog adoption fee will cover more of the costs associated with the care and adoption of dogs and 

the operation of the department generally.  This adjustment will not have a negative impact on positive 

outcomes for dogs available for adoption at Animal Services nor will it negatively impact the number of days a 

dog spends at Animal Services prior to adoption.   

http://www.wcasrock.org/
http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:RBNHAdministrator@wincoil.us


 
 

   
    Executive Summary 

 

 4517 North Main St  |  Rockford, IL 61103  |  www.wcasrock.org  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4100  |  Fax: (815) 319-4101  |  Email: bfrazier@wincoil.us 

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
 
Recommendation:  
To approve and adopt the amendment to county code as presented.  
 
 
Contract/Agreement:  
NA 
 
 
Legal Review:   
The State’s Attorney’s Office assisted in drafting the ordinance amendment. 
 
 
Follow-Up: 
If approved, the Animal Services Department will update public information relating to the areas of code to be 
amended.  Staff will be trained on the new income eligibility verification requirements for Department 
services for which the verification of a household as low-income is required.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

         

http://www.wcasrock.org/
http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:RBNHAdministrator@wincoil.us


1 
 

County Board Meeting 
February 25, 2021 

 
SPONSORED BY:  BURT GERL 

 
ORDINANCE 

OF THE  
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
2021 CO ___ 

 
ORDINANCE AMENDING ADOPTION FEE SCHEDULE AND LOW INCOME 

ELIGIBILITY VERIFICATION REQUIREMENTS AT ANIMAL SERVICES  
 

WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, desires to 
amend their ordinances related to the fee schedule for adopting dogs and low income 
eligibility verification at Animal Services; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 14-116 of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances sets 

forth the fee schedule for adoptions and other services at Winnebago County Animal 
Services; and 

 
WHEREAS, Animal Services is recommending increasing the fee for dog 

adoptions from $110.00 to $150.00 in order to cover more of the costs associated with 
adoption; and 

 
WHEREAS, to align with the Animal Control Act and simplify the process of 

verifying the income of county residents who may be eligible for low income services, 
Animal Services is recommending an amendment to allow proof of eligibility for the 
Food Stamp Program or the Social Security Disability Program, rather than following 
established WIC guidelines. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois, that Chapter 14, Article IV, Section 14-116 of the Winnebago 
County Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

Sec. 14-116. - Fee schedule. 

The following fees and charges shall be paid prior to the rendition of services or release 
of the animal: 

Service Fee 
(1)  Dog registration: ..... 

a. If the owner provides evidence that the dog has been spayed or neutered 1 , or 
the dog is under one year of age, annually .....$ 25.00 

b. If the dog is fertile, annually .....40.00 



2 
 

c. If the owner is in possession of a valid hobby breeder and exhibitor permit, 
annually .....25.00 

d. Hobby breeder and exhibitor permit, annually .....30.00 
(2)  Cat registration: ..... 

a. If the owner provides evidence that the cat has been spayed or neutered 1 , or the 
cat is under one year of age, annually .....20.00 

b. If the cat is fertile, annually .....30.00 
c. If the owner is in possession of a valid hobby breeder and exhibitor permit, 

annually .....20.00 
d. Hobby breeder and exhibitor permit, annually .....30.00 

(3)  Vaccination for reclaimed animals .....12.00 
(4)  Room and board: ..... 

a. Per day, per dog 2 .....12.00 
b. Per day, per cat 2 .....8.00 
c. Per day, per animal quarantined for biting 2 .....20.00 
d. Per day, per cat quarantined for biting 2 .....15.00 

(5)  Biting animals: 
a. Veterinary examination for biter animals .....25.00 
b. Owner release of biter animals .....No charge 

(6)  Handling charge for impounded animals: 
a. Animals wearing current registration tags, or having a department-approved 

identification implant, at the time of impoundment: ..... 
For first offense .....15.00 
For second offense .....50.00 
For any subsequent offense .....75.00 

b. Animals not wearing current registration tags, nor having a department-
approved identification implant, at the time of impoundment .....35.00 

(7)  Adoption: 
a. Dogs: All dogs .....150.00110.00 
b. Cats: ..... 

Cats up to 1 year old .....85.00 
Cats 1 year and older .....40.00 
All dogs and cats shall be spayed or neutered, registered, vaccinated, and 
receive preventative health care before adoption. 

c. Exotic: 
Preventative health care .....20.00 

d. Small mammal: 
Preventative health care .....7.00 

(8)  Euthanasia per dog or cat at owner's request for low income only3: 
a. Cat, brought in to facility .....37.00 
b. Cat, pick up .....55.00 
c. Dog, brought in to facility .....50.00 
d. Dog, pick up .....60.00 

(9)  Owner release of unwanted animals: 
a. Where the owner is a resident of the county: 

1. Per adult dog .....25.00 



3 
 

2. Per adult cat .....20.00 
b. Where the owner is a resident of the county, per puppy or kitten under three 

months of age .....5.00 
c. For animals other than dogs or cats brought to the facility .....7.00 
d. For dog, cat or other animal picked up at owner's home in the county, per dog, 

cat or other animal .....35.00 
e. For each additional puppy or kitten under three months of age picked up at 

owner's home in the county .....5.00 
(10)  Disposal of dead animals: 

a. Dogs brought to the facility .....25.00 
b. Dogs picked up by officer .....45.00 
c. Cats brought to the facility .....15.00 
d. Cats picked up by officer .....35.00 

(11)  Duplicate license fee .....5.00 
(12)  Microchip per dog or cat .....35.00 
(13)  2nd offense owned running at large fees: 

a. Spay of dog .....175.00 
b. Neuter of dog .....145.00 
c. Additional fine .....25.00 

(14)  Low income only3spay/neuter voucher .....20.00 
 

1  Acceptable evidence of alteration consists of certification by the veterinarian 
performing the alteration procedure or a notarized statement made by the seller of 
the animal indicating that it had been spayed or neutered while in his/her 
possession. 
2  For any part of a day that the animal is in the custody of the shelter. 
3  Low income only follows established WIC guidelinescounty residents who are 
eligible for the Food Stamp Program or Social Security Disability Benefits 
Program. 
 

The chairman of the county board is authorized to enact a temporary registration fee 
reduction at his or her discretion, in order to promote compliance with sections 14-
66 and 14-67 of this code, provided a) that any such reduction complies with Section 3 
of the Illinois Animal Control Act (510 ILCS 5/3) as now enacted, or hereafter 
amended, including maintaining a minimum differential often $10.00 between altered 
and unaltered animals, with $10.00 of that differential to be deposited county animal 
population control fund or in the state's pet population control fund and b) that any such 
reduction is enacted to assist low-income pet owners to become in compliance with 
sections 14-66 and 14-67 of this Code. 
 
The animal services administrator is authorized to modify adoption fees set forth in 
subsection (7) above, and room and board fees set forth in subsection (4) above, and 
handling charge fees set forth in subsection (6) above, to promote the reduction in the 
number of animals being held at the county shelter. The animal services administrator 
shall provide a report to the county administrator each month which sets forth the fees 

https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-66REINDO
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-66REINDO
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-67REINCA
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-66REINDO
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-67REINCA


4 
 

that have been modified, or waived in each subsection above, including the total values 
of modifications and waivers in each subsection. 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and 
effect immediately upon signing. 

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board shall provide 

a certified copy of this Ordinance upon its adoption to the County Administrator and the 
Animal Services Administrator. 

 
   

Respectfully submitted, 
 

PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY 
COMMITTEE 

 
 
 
 
 
 
AGREE      DISAGREE 

 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Burt Gerl, Chairman     Burt Gerl, Chairman   
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Aaron Booker      Aaron Booker 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Kevin McCarthy     Kevin McCarthy  
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Brad Lindmark     Brad Lindmark 
    
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Tim Nabors      Tim Nabors 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Dave KelleyAngie Goral                                Angie Goral Dave 
Kelley 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Dorothy ReddJas Bilich                               Dorothy Redd 
 Jas Bilich 
 



5 
 

 
 
 

APPROVED this _____ day of ___________________, 2021 by the County 
Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois. 
 
    
  
       _____________________________ 
       Joseph Chiarelli 
       Chairman of the County Board 
       of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
Attested by: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 



1 
 

County Board Meeting 
February 25, 2021 

 
SPONSORED BY:  BURT GERL 

 
ORDINANCE 

OF THE  
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
2021 CO ___ 

 
ORDINANCE AMENDING ADOPTION FEE SCHEDULE AND LOW INCOME 

ELIGIBILITY VERIFICATION REQUIREMENTS AT ANIMAL SERVICES  
 

WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, desires to 
amend their ordinances related to the fee schedule for adopting dogs and low income 
eligibility verification at Animal Services; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 14-116 of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances sets 

forth the fee schedule for adoptions and other services at Winnebago County Animal 
Services; and 

 
WHEREAS, Animal Services is recommending increasing the fee for dog 

adoptions from $110.00 to $150.00 in order to cover more of the costs associated with 
adoption; and 

 
WHEREAS, to align with the Animal Control Act and simplify the process of 

verifying the income of county residents who may be eligible for low income services, 
Animal Services is recommending an amendment to allow proof of eligibility for the 
Food Stamp Program or the Social Security Disability Program, rather than following 
established WIC guidelines. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois, that Chapter 14, Article IV, Section 14-116 of the Winnebago 
County Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

Sec. 14-116. - Fee schedule. 

The following fees and charges shall be paid prior to the rendition of services or release 
of the animal: 

Service Fee 
(1)  Dog registration: ..... 

a. If the owner provides evidence that the dog has been spayed or neutered 1 , or 
the dog is under one year of age, annually .....$ 25.00 

b. If the dog is fertile, annually .....40.00 



2 
 

c. If the owner is in possession of a valid hobby breeder and exhibitor permit, 
annually .....25.00 

d. Hobby breeder and exhibitor permit, annually .....30.00 
(2)  Cat registration: ..... 

a. If the owner provides evidence that the cat has been spayed or neutered 1 , or the 
cat is under one year of age, annually .....20.00 

b. If the cat is fertile, annually .....30.00 
c. If the owner is in possession of a valid hobby breeder and exhibitor permit, 

annually .....20.00 
d. Hobby breeder and exhibitor permit, annually .....30.00 

(3)  Vaccination for reclaimed animals .....12.00 
(4)  Room and board: ..... 

a. Per day, per dog 2 .....12.00 
b. Per day, per cat 2 .....8.00 
c. Per day, per animal quarantined for biting 2 .....20.00 
d. Per day, per cat quarantined for biting 2 .....15.00 

(5)  Biting animals: 
a. Veterinary examination for biter animals .....25.00 
b. Owner release of biter animals .....No charge 

(6)  Handling charge for impounded animals: 
a. Animals wearing current registration tags, or having a department-approved 

identification implant, at the time of impoundment: ..... 
For first offense .....15.00 
For second offense .....50.00 
For any subsequent offense .....75.00 

b. Animals not wearing current registration tags, nor having a department-
approved identification implant, at the time of impoundment .....35.00 

(7)  Adoption: 
a. Dogs: All dogs .....150.00 
b. Cats: ..... 

Cats up to 1 year old .....85.00 
Cats 1 year and older .....40.00 
All dogs and cats shall be spayed or neutered, registered, vaccinated, and 
receive preventative health care before adoption. 

c. Exotic: 
Preventative health care .....20.00 

d. Small mammal: 
Preventative health care .....7.00 

(8)  Euthanasia per dog or cat at owner's request for low income only3: 
a. Cat, brought in to facility .....37.00 
b. Cat, pick up .....55.00 
c. Dog, brought in to facility .....50.00 
d. Dog, pick up .....60.00 

(9)  Owner release of unwanted animals: 
a. Where the owner is a resident of the county: 

1. Per adult dog .....25.00 



3 
 

2. Per adult cat .....20.00 
b. Where the owner is a resident of the county, per puppy or kitten under three 

months of age .....5.00 
c. For animals other than dogs or cats brought to the facility .....7.00 
d. For dog, cat or other animal picked up at owner's home in the county, per dog, 

cat or other animal .....35.00 
e. For each additional puppy or kitten under three months of age picked up at 

owner's home in the county .....5.00 
(10)  Disposal of dead animals: 

a. Dogs brought to the facility .....25.00 
b. Dogs picked up by officer .....45.00 
c. Cats brought to the facility .....15.00 
d. Cats picked up by officer .....35.00 

(11)  Duplicate license fee .....5.00 
(12)  Microchip per dog or cat .....35.00 
(13)  2nd offense owned running at large fees: 

a. Spay of dog .....175.00 
b. Neuter of dog .....145.00 
c. Additional fine .....25.00 

(14)  Low income only3spay/neuter voucher .....20.00 
 

1  Acceptable evidence of alteration consists of certification by the veterinarian 
performing the alteration procedure or a notarized statement made by the seller of 
the animal indicating that it had been spayed or neutered while in his/her 
possession. 
2  For any part of a day that the animal is in the custody of the shelter. 
3  Low income county residents who are eligible for the Food Stamp Program or 
Social Security Disability Benefits Program. 
 

The chairman of the county board is authorized to enact a temporary registration fee 
reduction at his or her discretion, in order to promote compliance with sections 14-
66 and 14-67 of this code, provided a) that any such reduction complies with Section 3 
of the Illinois Animal Control Act (510 ILCS 5/3) as now enacted, or hereafter 
amended, including maintaining a minimum differential often $10.00 between altered 
and unaltered animals, with $10.00 of that differential to be deposited county animal 
population control fund or in the state's pet population control fund and b) that any such 
reduction is enacted to assist low-income pet owners to become in compliance with 
sections 14-66 and 14-67 of this Code. 
 
The animal services administrator is authorized to modify adoption fees set forth in 
subsection (7) above, and room and board fees set forth in subsection (4) above, and 
handling charge fees set forth in subsection (6) above, to promote the reduction in the 
number of animals being held at the county shelter. The animal services administrator 
shall provide a report to the county administrator each month which sets forth the fees 
that have been modified, or waived in each subsection above, including the total values 
of modifications and waivers in each subsection. 

https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-66REINDO
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-66REINDO
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-67REINCA
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-66REINDO
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-67REINCA


4 
 

 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and 
effect immediately upon signing. 

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board shall provide 

a certified copy of this Ordinance upon its adoption to the County Administrator and the 
Animal Services Administrator. 

 
   

Respectfully submitted, 
 

PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY 
COMMITTEE 

 
 
 
 
 
 
AGREE      DISAGREE 

 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Burt Gerl, Chairman     Burt Gerl, Chairman   
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Aaron Booker      Aaron Booker 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Kevin McCarthy     Kevin McCarthy  
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Brad Lindmark     Brad Lindmark 
    
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Tim Nabors      Tim Nabors 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Angie Goral      Angie Goral 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Dorothy Redd      Dorothy Redd 
 
 
 
 



5 
 

APPROVED this _____ day of ___________________, 2021 by the County 
Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois. 
 
    
  
       _____________________________ 
       Joseph Chiarelli 
       Chairman of the County Board 
       of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
Attested by: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 



 

UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 



 

NEW BUSINESS 



 

ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

 
Announcements & Communications 
Date: February 25, 2021 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Lori Gummow 
 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 
 
County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 
 
Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  
 

1. County Clerk Gummow received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory 
Commission the following: 
 
a. Exelon Generation Company, LLC – Fleet Alternative Request to Expand the Use 

ASME Codes Cases N-878 and N-880. 
 

b. Braidwood Station, Units 1 and 2; Byron Station, Unit Nos. 1 and 2; Calvert Cliffs 
Nuclear Power Plant, Units 1 and 2; Clinton Power Station, Unit No.1; Dresden 
Nuclear Power Station, Units 2 and 3; James A. Fitzpatrick Nuclear Power Plant; 
LaSalle County Station, Units 1 and 2; Limerick Generating Station, Units 1 and 2; 
Nine Mile Point Nuclear Station, Units 1 and 2; Peach Bottom Atomic Power 
Station, Units 2 and 3; Quad Cities Nuclear Power Station, Units 1 and 2; and R.E. 
Ginna Nuclear Power Plant – Request to Use a Provision of a Later Edition of the 
American Society of Mechanical Engineers Boiler and Pressure Vessel Code, 
Section XI (EPID L-2020-LLR-0118). 
 

c. Byron Nuclear Power Station, Unit 1 – Review of the Spring 2020 Steam Generator 
Tube Inspection Report (EPID L-2020-LRO-056). 

 

d. Summary of October 13, 2020, Presubmittal Meeting Between the U.S. Nuclear 
Regulatory Commission and Exelon Generation Company, LLC Regarding Post 
Shutdown Emergency Plan Staffing to Support the Planned Early Closures of 
Byron, Units 1 and 2, and Dresden, Units 2 and 3 (EPID L-2020-LRM-0094). 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

 

e. Byron Station – Triennial Fire Protection Inspection Report 05000454/2021010 
and 05000455/2021010. 

 
2. County Clerk Gummow received from Charter Communications a notice that on or after 

March 1, 2021, Spectrum Mid-America, WGN America and WGN America HD will rebrand 
to NewsNation on the Roscoe IL channel lineup for following: 

 
a. County of Winnebago 
b. Township of Harlem 
c. Township of Rockton 
d. Township of Roscoe 

 
3. County Clerk Gummow received from Charter Communications a notice that on or after 

April 1, 2021, Spectrum Mid-America, LLC eliminate standard and launch high definition 
on channel 2508 for the following: 

 
a. County of Winnebago 
b. Township of Harlem 
c. Township of Rockton 
d. Township of Roscoe 

 
4. County Clerk Gummow received from Theresa Grennan, Chief Deputy Winnebago County 

Treasurer the Investment Report as of February, 2021. 
 
5. County Clerk Gummow received from Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc. 

a Certificate of Liability Insurance for Roofing Systems Inc.  
 
  

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us


 

Adjournment – 
Next Meeting 


	Agenda
	Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings & Public Participation
	Approval of Minutes
	Consent Agenda
	Appointments
	Executive Summary - Tom Walsh
	Letter of Interest - Tom Walsh
	Resume - Tom Walsh
	Executive Summary - Tamara Verstraete
	Letter of Interest - Tamara Verstraete
	Resume - Tamara Verstraete
	Executive Summary - Edward Conklin
	Letter of Interest & Bio - Edward Conklin
	Executive Summary - Roger Allen
	Resume & Letter of Interest - Roger Allen
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Finance Committee
	Ord. for Approval of BA for Reimbursable Technology Expenditures
	Ord. for Approval of BA for Reimbursable Technology Expenditures
	Executive Summary & Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Claim Entitled Ryan Beckon vs. Winn. Cty.
	Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Claim Entitled Glenn Heidenreich vs. Winn. Cty.
	Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Claim Entitled David Kniffen vs. Winn. Cty.
	Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Claim Entitled Jody Miller vs. Winn. Cty.
	Zoning Committee
	Public Works Committee
	21-002 Resolution Authorizing Obligation Retirement of Bond Payments from MFT Funds
	21-003 Resolution Authorizing Execution of Preliminary Engineering Services Agrmt. w/Chastain  Assoc.
	Public Safety & Judiciary Committee
	Executive Summary
	Ordinance Amending Section 14-116 Fee Schedule - Redline copy
	Ordinance Amending Section 14-116 Fee Schedule - Clean copy
	Unfinished Business
	New Business
	Announcements & Communications
	Adjournment - Next Meeting



